
1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

Minutes 
General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

               10:00 a.m. Monday, July 17th, 2017 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters at 10:01 a.m. 
Members present 
 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Brian Masters Chair Present 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 
Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 
Larry Jepsen Supervisor Absent 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Absent 
   
Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Dana Frey, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, Deputy 
County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Maggie Wickre,  Finance Director; Tammy Peterson, 
Admin. Executive Secretary; Rhoda Hatzenbeller, Bookkeeper;  Jenelle Lindquist, Fiscal Intermediate 
Support; Amanda Nissen, Treasurer;  Brock Geyen, Auditor from CliftonLarsonAllen; and member of the 
press. 
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve agenda. Motion (Arcand/Johansen) 
to approve agenda. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to approve agenda. Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote. 
  
Approval of Minutes- Chair Masters called for a motion to amend and approve the minutes of the June 
8th, 2017 meeting. Motion (Johansen/Arcand) to approve June 8th, 2017 minutes. Chair Masters called 
for a voice vote on the motion to approve June 8th, 2017 minutes. Motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 
Public Comment – Time was given for public comment. No public comment was received. 

Announcements 

Committee received 2016 departmental annual reports from Administrator Frey and updates on the 
Highway Facility project. 

Action Items 
 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

Committee reviewed/discussed proposed Resolution 16-17: Resolution to Amend 2017 County Budget 
to Provide for Consulting Services Concerning the Repair or Restoration of the Polk County Fairground 
Grandstand. Motion (Johansen/Arcand) to move Resolution 16-17 to County Board with no 
recommendation. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to move Resolution 16-17 to the 
County Board without any recommendation. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Recommendation on Resolution 45-17: Resolution to Update Designation of Persons Authorized to 
Request Coverage under Legal Loss Prevention Services Endorsement of Wisconsin County Mutual 
Insurance Corporation Liability Policies was discussed. Motion (Johansen/Masters) to approve 
Resolution 45-17 and recommend passage to County Board.  Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the 
motion to approve and recommend passage. Motion to approve and recommend passage of Resolution 
45-17 to County Board carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Committee received presentation from Amanda Nissen, Treasurer regarding bank bids received from 
Midwest One Bank and Bremer Bank. After analysis of bids by Investment Committee, Nissen 
recommended that Polk County stay with Midwest One Bank for another two year contract term. 
Motion (Johansen/Arcand) to approve Midwest One Bank as bank for Polk County operating accounts. 
Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to approve Midwest One as bank for Polk County for 
two year contract. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Discussion Items 

Committee received annual audit reports and annual audit summary report from Brock Geyen, Auditor 
from CliftonLarsonAllen.  Overall findings were positive though some issues regarding segregation of 
duties in cash handling are pending resolution.  

Committee received information from Administrator Frey regarding cash handling and segregation of 
duties.  

Committee received update on government building security from Administrator Frey.  Committee 
received suggested remodel plan rendition from Administrator Frey. Tentative plan would create a 
central Business Office combining Treasurer and County Clerk offices with goals of addressing security 
concerns and cash handling with all cash transactions handled by Treasurer Office to greatest extent 
possible for transactions involving Register of Deeds fees, County Clerk fees, and Zoning fees. Security 
updates incorporated in the remodel would address security for offices of Register of Deeds and Zoning 
as well. 

Committee received information from Administrator Frey regarding Accounts Receivable reporting and 
practices. 

Future Agenda Items 

Next meeting Thursday, August 10th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.  
August meeting items:    



3 
 

Fee Schedule 
Review/Recommendations regarding Fund Balance 
Report/inventory on Real (county) property 
    
Other items on Work Plan:  Paper Reduction, Capital improvement planning, IT developments and 
innovation, Employment issues and trends 
 
Adjourn 
 
Motion (Johansen/Masters) to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Meeting adjourned 11:19 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  
 

 



PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

 Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

**SECOND**AMENDED* AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

*DATE CHANGE ONLY OF MEETING TO: Monday, July 17th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

Materials:  June 8th, 2017 Minutes 

10:00 1. Call to order
a. Approval of agenda
b. Approval of minutes for June 8th, 2017

Brian 
Masters 

10:05 2. Public comment (3 minutes)

10:10 3. Announcements and committee information
a. Department annual reports

Dana Frey 

10:15 4. Action Items
a. Resolution No.16-17:  Resolution to Amend 2017 County Budget to

Provide for Consulting Services Concerning the Repair or Restoration of
the Polk County Fairground Grandstand

b. Resolution No. 45-17: Resolution to Update Designation of Persons
Authorized to Request Coverage under Legal Loss Prevention Services
Endorsement of Wisconsin County Mutual Insurance Corporation
Liability Policies

c. **Review and Approve Bank Bid

Dana Frey 

Amanda 
Nissen 

10:30 

11:30 

5. Discussion Items
a. Annual audit of Polk County finances
b. Cash handling and segregation of duties
c. Government Center/Justice Center security and related operational

issues
d. Accounts Receivable

6. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings
7. Adjourn

This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at 
least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be 
made. Requests are confidential. 

Auditors 
Dana Frey 
& Auditors 

Dana Frey 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

 Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

*AMENDED* AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

DATE CHANGE ONLY OF MEETING TO: Monday, July 17th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

Materials:  June 8th, 2017 Minutes 

10:00 1. Call to order
a. Approval of agenda
b. Approval of minutes for June 8th, 2017

Brian 
Masters 

10:05 2. Public comment (3 minutes)

10:10 3. Announcements and committee information
a. Department annual reports

Dana Frey 

10:15 4. Action Items
a. Resolution No.16-17:  Resolution to Amend 2017 County Budget to

Provide for Consulting Services Concerning the Repair or Restoration of
the Polk County Fairground Grandstand

b. Resolution No. 45-17: Resolution to Update Designation of Persons
Authorized to Request Coverage under Legal Loss Prevention Services
Endorsement of Wisconsin County Mutual Insurance Corporation
Liability Policies

Dana Frey 

10:30 

11:30 

5. Discussion Items
a. Annual audit of Polk County finances
b. Cash handling and segregation of duties
c. Government Center/Justice Center security and related operational

issues
d. Accounts Receivable

6. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings
7. Adjourn

This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at 
least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be 
made. Requests are confidential. 

Auditors 
Dana Frey 
& Auditors 

Dana Frey 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

 Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Thursday, July 13th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

Materials:  June 8th, 2017 Minutes 

10:00 1. Call to order
a. Approval of agenda
b. Approval of minutes for June 8th, 2017

Brian 
Masters 

10:05 2. Public comment (3 minutes)

10:10 3. Announcements and committee information
a. Department annual reports

Dana Frey 

10:15 4. Action Items
a. Resolution No.16-17:  Resolution to Amend 2017 County Budget to

Provide for Consulting Services Concerning the Repair or Restoration of
the Polk County Fairground Grandstand

b. Resolution No. 45-17: Resolution to Update Designation of Persons
Authorized to Request Coverage under Legal Loss Prevention Services
Endorsement of Wisconsin County Mutual Insurance Corporation
Liability Policies

Dana Frey 

10:30 

11:30 

5. Discussion Items
a. Annual audit of Polk County finances
b. Cash handling and segregation of duties
c. Government Center/Justice Center security and related operational

issues
d. Accounts Receivable

6. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings
7. Adjourn

This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at 
least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be 
made. Requests are confidential. 

Auditors 
Dana Frey 
& Auditors 

Dana Frey 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

Minutes 
General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

               10:00 a.m. Thursday, June 8th, 2017 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters at 10:03 a.m. 
Members present 
 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Brian Masters Chair Present 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 
Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 
Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 
   
Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Dana Frey, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, Deputy 
County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Jeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel; Emil Norby, 
Highway Commissioner; members of the public, and member of the press. 
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve agenda. Motion (Jepsen/Arcand) to 
approve agenda. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to approve agenda. Motion carried 
by unanimous voice vote. 
  
Approval of Minutes- Chair Masters called for a motion to amend and approve the minutes of the May 
16th, 2017 meeting. Motion (Masters/Johansen) to amend and approve the May 16th, 2017 minutes. 
Minutes amended to reflect contingency transfer for audio visual equipment for Branch 2 courtroom is 
from the Information Technology Budget rather than the Clerk of Court Budget. Chair Masters called 
for a voice vote on the motion to approve minutes as amended. Motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 
Public Comment – Committee received public comment. 

Announcements 

Committee received information from Administrator Frey including general updates, 2016 Audit Report 
results expected by June 30, 2017 with report to committee in July. 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

Committee received update on highway facility project from Andrea Jerrick, Deputy Administrator 
regarding projected dates of request for proposals for Architecture and Engineering due June 12th, 2017, 
County Board decision on A & E Contractor(s), and closing on Bishop property expected in mid-July. 

Action Items 
 
Committee reviewed/discussed proposed Resolution 16-17: Resolution to Amend 2017 County Budget 
to Provide for Consulting Services Concerning the Repair or Restoration of the Polk County Fairground 
Grandstand. Motion Jepsen/Nelson to postpone recommendation to County Board for another month 
until July meeting. Recommendation on Resolution 16-17 has been postponed by Ad Hoc Committee on 
Fairgrounds Grandstand Infrastructure as well. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to 
postpone recommendation. Motion to postpone recommendation to County Board carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Recommendation on Resolution 33-17: Resolution to Authorize Offer of Donation of Polk County 
Museum to the Polk County Historical Society was discussed. Motion (Jepsen/Johansen) to approve and 
recommend passage to County Board.  After further discussion and consult with Corporation Counsel, 
Motion Arcand/Johansen to recommend against passage of Res 33-17 to County Board. With two 
motions on the floor, Chair Masters called for a voice vote on first motion to approve and recommend 
passage. Original motion to approve and recommend passage of Resolution 33-17 to the County Board 
defeated by unanimous voice vote. 
Chair Masters called for a voice vote on second motion by Arcand/Johansen to recommend against 
passage of Res 33-17 to County Board. Motion recommending against passage of Res 33-17 to County 
Board carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Recommendation on Resolution 34-17: Resolution Concerning Additional Dog License Tax was 
discussed. Motion (Johansen/Nelson) to approve and recommend passage to County Board. Chair 
Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to approve and recommend passage of Res 34-17. Motion 
to approve and recommend passage of Resolution 34-17 to the County Board carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
Recommendation on Resolution 35-17: Resolution to Amend 2017 Budget to Incorporate Carry-forward 
Funds was discussed. Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to approve and recommend passage to County Board.  
Motion Nelson/Masters to amend resolution removing carry-over amount of $6000 for garage door for 
recycling center. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to approve and recommend 
passage of Res 35-17 with amendment of removal of $6000 amount for garage door. Motion to approve 
and recommend passage of Resolution 35-17 to the County Board as amended carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
Recommendation on Resolution 36-17: Resolution to Establish and Fund Highway Capital Account was 
discussed. Motion (Jepsen/Nelson) to approve and recommend passage to County Board.  Chair Masters 
called for a voice vote on the motion to approve and recommend passage of Res 36-17. Motion to 
approve and recommend passage of Resolution 36-17 to the County Board carried by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 



3 
 

Recommendation on Resolution 38-17: Resolution to Amend 2017 Polk County Budget to Provide 
Funding for the Public Work Bridge Replacement on County Road J was discussed. Motion 
(Jepsen/Masters) to approve and recommend passage to County Board.  Chair Masters called for a voice 
vote on the motion to approve and recommend passage of Res 38-17. Motion to approve and 
recommend passage of Resolution 38-17 to the County Board carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Discussion Items 

Committee received information from Administrator Frey regarding the Memorandum of Understanding 
/Agreement Between Polk County and the Polk County Fair Society for the Management and Use of the 
Polk County Fairground Land.   Administrator Frey addressed need for updated Memorandum of 
Understanding. County Board to discuss at July board meeting during Committee of the Whole.  

Committee received update on need for updates to government building security from Administrator 
Frey. 

Committee received copy of Cooperative Agreement with Polk County Tourism Council and information 
on current policy with outside agencies. Committee received draft for possible amendment/update to 
Polk County  Financial Policies section 2.05(i) regarding Funding or support of outside agencies from 
Administrator Frey. 

Future Agenda Items 

Next meeting Thursday, July 13th, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.  
 
July:    Annual Reports, 2016 Annual Audit report, Accounts Receivable, Succession Planning, 
Continuation of Government Center Security, Customer Service, Cash Handling, Needs of outside 
agencies 
Other items on Work Plan:  Paper Reduction, Capital improvement planning, IT developments and 
innovation, Employment issues and trends 
 
Adjourn 
 
Motion (Nelson/Johansen) to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Meeting adjourned 11:50 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  
 

 


























































	Gen Gov Minutes 7-17-17-df
	GG Agenda & Packet for 7-17-17 web
	Gen Government Agenda 7-13-17
	General Gov Minutes 6-8-2017
	Res 16-17 Amend Budget - Fairground Grandstand
	Res 45-17 WI Mutual Ins

	Gen Gov remodel plan 7-17
	Gen Gov Annual Repts 7-17



